
 

AGENDA 
Utility Management Review Board 

June 5, 2014 
10:00 am 

Room 31, Legislative Plaza 
301 Sixth Avenue North 

(6th Avenue between Charlotte Avenue and Union Street) 
Nashville, Tennessee 

Call to Order 
 
 
Approval of Minutes        April 3, 2014   
    
 
Case:   Surgoinsville Utility District    Hawkins County 
   Unicoi Water Utility District    Unicoi County 
   Cagle-Freedonia Utility District   Sequatchie County 
   North Utility District of Rhea County   Rhea County 
 
 
Case – water loss:  Mooresburg Utility District    Hawkins County 
   Spring Creek Utility District    Hardeman County 
 
Status:   Samburg Utility District    Obion County 
   Clearfork Utility District    Claiborne County 
   Lone Oak Utility District    Sequatchie County 
    
Complaint:  City of Elkton vs. South Giles Utility District  Giles County 
   Bent Creek Golf Village vs. Webb Creek Utility District Sevier County 
 
Commissioner removal: Powell Clinch Utility District    Anderson County 
   Northeast Henry Utility District    Henry County 
 
Miscellaneous:  Water loss annual review 

Compliance report 
Complaint  log 

   Jurisdiction list 
   Legislation/ AG opinion 
   Next UMRB regular meeting   
   
Open Discussion 
 
Visitors to the Legislative Plaza are required to pass through a metal detector and must present photo identification.  Individuals with disabilities who wish to 
participate in this meeting or to review filings should contact the Office of State and Local Finance to discuss any auxiliary aids or services need to facilitate such 
participation.  Such contact may be in person or by writing, telephone or other means, and should be made prior to the scheduled meeting date to allow time to 
provide such aid or service.  Contact the Office of State and Local Finance (Ms. Joyce Welborn) for further information. 

505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1500 
James K. Polk State Office Building 

Nashville, TN  37243-1402 
Telephone (615) 401-7864 

Fax (615) 741-6216 
Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov 

1

mailto:Joyce.Welborn@cot.tn.gov


WARREN 

RUTHERFORD 

WILSON DAVIDSON 

WILLIAMSON 

ROBERTSON 
MONTGOMERY 

DICKSON 

STEWART 

HOUSTON 

HICKMAN 

HUMPHREYS 

COFFEE BEDFORD 

MAURY 

GILES 

LAWRENCE 

WAYNE 

LEWIS 
PERRY 

HARDIN 

HENDERSON 

HENRY 
WEAKLEY 

OBION 

DYER 

GIBSON 

MADISON HAYWOOD 

TIPTON 

FAYETTE SHELBY      HARDEMAN 

CHESTER 

MCNAIRY 

CARROLL 

SUMNER 

MACON 

SMITH 

CLAY 

PUTNAM 

WHITE 

GRUNDY 

LINCOLN FRANKLIN MARION 

BLEDSOE 

CUMBERLAND 

OVERTON 

PICKETT 

FENTRESS 

MORGAN 

SCOTT 
CAMPBELL 

DEKALB 

UNION 

KNOX 

ROANE 

RHEA 

HAMILTON 
BRADLEY 

MCMINN 

POLK 

MONROE 

LOUDON BLOUNT 

SEVIER 

JEFFERSON 

HAWKINS 

CARTER 

GREENE 

COCKE 

UMRB 

Unicoi Water 

Utility District 

• Surgoinsville Utility District 

• Mooresburg Utility District 

South Giles Utility District 

Samburg Utility 

District 

Leoma Utility District 

Spring Creek 

Utility District 

Webb Creek Utility District 

JACKSON 

• Lone Oak Utility District 

• Cagle-Freedonia Utility District 

Clearfork Utility District 
(Campbell/Claiborne) 

• Roan Mountain Utility District 

• Siam Utility District 

• South Elizabethton Utility District 

Northeast Henry 

Utility District 

North Utility District of 

Rhea County 

Powell Clinch Utility District 

2



MINUTES 
of the 

UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
April 3, 2014 

10:00 am  
 
The meeting of the Utility Management Review Board (UMRB) in Room 31 of the Legislative Plaza in 
Nashville, Tennessee, was opened by Chair Ann Butterworth. 
 
Board members present and constituting a quorum: 
Ann Butterworth, Chair, Comptroller Designee 
Tom Moss, Vice-Chair, Department of Environment and Conservation (TDEC) Commissioner Designee 
Donald Stafford, Eastside Utility District Manager 
Jason West, Second South Cheatham Utility District Commissioner 
Rebecca Hunter, Hixson Utility District Commissioner 
Pat Riley, Gibson County Utility District 
Jim Hunter, West Wilson Utility District Commissioner 
 
Members Absent: 
Loyal Featherstone, Citizen representative 
 
Staff Present: 
Joyce Welborn, Comptroller’s Office 
John Greer, Comptroller’s Office 
Rachel Newton, Comptroller’s Office 
Betsy Knotts, Comptroller’s Office 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Ms. Butterworth called the meeting to order, declared a quorum and requested the members and staff 
to introduce themselves.  Ms. Hunter moved approval of the minutes of the December 5, 2013, meeting 
with two small typographical changes.  Mr. Stafford seconded the motion, which was unanimously 
approved.  Ms. Butterworth then suggested rearranging the agenda to first take up the matters of those 
present at the meeting. 
 
City of Elkton vs. South Giles Utility District: 
 
At the December 5, 2013, meeting, the UMRB voted to require South Giles Utility District to conduct a 
cost of service study.  On January 27, 2014, the Board received a Motion to Clarify what the cost of 
service study is to entail, what numbers the Board was interested in, and what specific services should 
be covered.  Ms. Welborn referred to the AWWA M1 Manual for definitions regarding a cost of service 
study.  Mr. Moss made the motion to clarify that the study is to be prepared by an independent third 
party, to include at a minimum fire hydrant service, use the AWWA definitions as provided in the packet, 
and direct Board counsel to prepare a letter to convey that information.  Ms. Hunter seconded the 
motion, which was approved unanimously.   
 
 

3



Petition to change commissioner selection procedure 
Belvidere Utility District 
Belvidere Utility District was requesting approval of the resolution adopted by the District’s Board of 
Commissioners to change the District’s present method of filling vacancies to the uniform method of 
County Mayor approval.  Mr. Don Scholes, representing the District, presented the petition to the Board.  
He explained the need to change the process of filling vacancies due to lack of participation in the 
current election format and referenced the letter included in the packet that reflects the County 
Mayor’s support of this petition.  Mr. Hunter made the motion to determine that the change in method 
of selection is in the best interest of the District and its customers and requested the Board’s counsel to 
draft an order approving the resolution.  Motion was seconded by Mr. Stafford and unanimously 
approved.   
 
Hearing 
Bent Creek Golf Village vs. Webb Creek Utility District 
The Board previously decided that if the two sides were not in agreement, briefs were to be filed by 
March 1, 2014.  The briefs were timely received by counsel to the Board.  Ms. Butterworth outlined the 
facts that appeared based on the briefs submitted to be mutually agreed upon by both parties and the 
various exhibits that had been introduced.  Mr. Bob Vance, representing Bent Creek Golf Village (“Bent 
Creek”), and Mr. Jim Gass, representing Webb Creek Utility District (“District”), agreed to the facts as 
outlined by Ms. Butterworth.   
 
Mr. Vance stated the position of his client, Bent Creek, is that the District rates are unjust and 
unreasonable and the District failed to provide material evidence to support their rates.   Mr. Vance also 
stated that the District reclassified 37 units on Bent Creek for the simple purpose of almost doubling 
their minimum bill in violation of the master deed.  Mr. West asked Mr. Vance if the two bedroom units 
are split into two separate units with two separate kitchens / kitchenettes and washer and dryer.  Mr. 
Vance stated that the units cannot be split into two units for sale, but can be rented separately.  Mr. 
Moss asked Mr. Vance if he was aware that the units are advertised online as separate units. Mr. Vance 
stated he did not know how the units were advertised, but would not argue that both sides of the units 
are fully furnished.   Mr. Vance stated that the case should have been litigated over a year ago, or there 
should be a new rate study in this case.   Bent Creek is challenging the current rates being charged, as 
well as asking for a refund for overcharges from 2008-2013.   
 
Mr.  Gass, representing the District, then noted several documents to be admitted into the official 
record.  He also noted that all documents in previous hearings before the UMRB should be admitted into 
the official record.  Mr. Gass stated that the District is in the usage business and the fact that state law 
prohibits the units from being sold separately does not affect how the District views the units.  The units 
that are being used as two separate units should be charged as two units for usage purposes.  He also 
explained how the District has high fixed costs and is a seasonal utility.    
 
Ms. Newton requested the documents that as introduced be recognized for the record.  Mr. Gass 
explained that the first document on behalf of Webb Creek was a memorandum from Raftelis Financial 
Consultants dated January 16, 2014 (exhibit 1)  and the second was a memorandum from Raftelis dated 
August 2, 2010 (exhibit 2).  Mr. Vance identified two documents on behalf of Bent Creek; the first was 
Mr. Yarborough’s updated cost of service analysis, 2005-2011 (exhibit 3) and the second was Bent 
Creek’s water bills from January 2011 to February 2014 (exhibit 4).  Ms. Newton asked that the rate 
study in the current agenda pack (dated July 16, 2009) be labeled as exhibit 5 for the record. 

4



 
Mr. West asked if the minimum water bill charged to Bent Creek was the same minimum rate charged 
to the rest of the customer base, and Mr. Gass confirmed this to be true.  Mr. West also asked if the 
units at Bent Creek that went over 3,000 gallons were charged the same rate as the rest of the customer 
base, and Mr. Gass confirmed this as true.   

 
Mr. Bart Kreps with Raftelis presented an overview of the previously completed rate study.  Mr. Kreps 
outlined the various obstacles the District faces in providing service to its customers such as:  an   
extremely small, seasonal and transient customer base; both water and sewer service are being 
provided;  the  topography of the area makes service difficult; the District has been classified as 
financially distressed.  He also explained that these obstacles made it necessary for the District to have 
high fixed cost, and in return a high minimum bill.  He estimated that up to 90% of the costs of the utility 
were fixed.  Mr. Kreps explained the process and methodology by which the rate study was conducted.  
In the usage data he reviewed, a 3,000 gallon minimum bill was appropriate – not only in the Bent Creek 
area, but throughout the District.  Ms. Butterworth asked if the rates had been adjusted since 2009.  The 
rates were adjusted in both 20111 and 2012 based on the rate study in an attempt to resolve the 
financially distressed condition of the District. 
 
Mr. Vance clarified that the Raftelis study was based on one meter for the Bent Creek property, and not 
for each unit as being separately metered.  Mr. Kreps confirmed that the usage data for Bent Creek was 
based on one meter.  Ms. Newton asked Mr. Kreps to provide to the Board the underlying data for his 
analysis, which he agreed to provide.  A deadline of April 11, 2014, was agreed upon. Staff will 
disseminate the information to the appropriate parties.   
 
Ms. Butterworth asked Mr. Kreps if the number of customers (around 720) in the report was based on 
the number of minimum bills sent.  Mr. Kreps confirmed this and said the number of customers has not 
varied greatly since the study.  Ms. Welborn stated that the 2010 audit reflected 744 water customers 
and 321 wastewater customers. The 384 individual campsites of Outdoor Resorts are counted as one 
customer for billing purposes.   Mr. Kreps stated that Bent Creek is also supplied sewer service which is 
based on the same volume amounts as the water billing. 
 
Mr. Vance requested that Mr. Richard Yarborough, an engineering consultant hired by Bent Creek, be 
able to present his analysis to the Board.  Mr. Yarborough stated that a cost of service analysis is based 
on what it actually cost the District to provide the service.  He stated that the AWWA Manual says the 
cost should be tied to the meter – not the population.  His opinion was if this had been an industry with 
one meter, there would be no hearing and the analysis should be based on the cost to serve that one 
meter, plus usage.  Mr. Yarborough explained that his analysis proved that the actual cost for Webb 
Creek to provide service to Bent Creek is in the $2,200 per month range, but was being charged a 
monthly average of $4,700.  Mr. Yarborough agreed that Bent Creek should have a large base rate due 
to its nature.  Mr. Yarborough clarified that the overall cost that the District stated is accurate, but the 
bulk of the cost should be spread out to the customers – not only to Bent Creek.  Mr. Robert Vick, 
President of the District, stated that Bent Creek has one meter and receives one bill, which is the same 
as another condominium being served by the District.   
 
Ms. Welborn stated that Bent Creek never had an issue with the fact that they were billed for 42 units 
on one meter.  The issue came when they started being billed for 84 units on one meter.   

5



 
 Mr. Yarborough claimed that in his review of the Raftelis study, he was able to find no supporting 
documentation to show they did a cost of service analysis.  The work Mr. Yarborough did showed that 
Bent Creek was not being charged based on the cost of service, but double the actual cost of service.   
 
Mr. Kreps rebutted the idea that the Raftelis study was done improperly.  He provided that meter 
readings reflect the average close to 3,000 gallons per unit, the minimum monthly bill for all other 
District customers. 
  
Mr. Moss moved that the Board defer action to the June 5, 2014, UMRB meeting pending information 
forthcoming.  Mr. Kreps was to have the background information used in the rate study to the Board 
staff and counsel by April 11, 2014, who would forward it to the Board by the end of April.  Counsel for 
each party agreed to submit findings of fact and conclusions of law to the Board staff by May 15, 2014.  
The motion was seconded by Ms. Hunter and carried unanimously. 
 
Case 
Lone Oak Utility District: 
 
The Commissioners of Lone Oak previously stated they would be present for this meeting.  Ms. Welborn 
received an email the morning of the meeting that no one would be attending and that the District was 
waiting on legal opinions.  When those matters were settled, they would move forth with consolidation.   
 
Mr. West made the motion to subpoena all three Commissioners of Lone Oak Utility District to appear at 
the June 5, 2014, meeting.  Mr. Moss seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved.  Ms. 
Welborn mentioned that legislation pending in the General Assembly allowing the purchase of utility 
districts by private companies could affect this case. 
 
Investigative Report 
Carderview Utility District 
 
The investigative audit for the District was released on March 5, 2014.  The Board received and reviewed 
the report.  No other action was taken.   
 
Water Loss Status 
Clearfork Utility District 
 
The Board reviewed the information submitted by the District.  Mr. Moss stated that the District 
answered that they do not know in regards to the monetary value of water loss.  Ms. Hunter made the 
motion to send the report back for more clarification and to request TAUD to work with Clearfork to 
understand the process.  Mr. Moss seconded the motion, which carried unanimously.   
 
Miscellaneous  

State law requires that utility district training approvals be submitted to the Board.  One approval was 
been filed with the Board. 

6



A customer complaint log, a list of utility districts under the jurisdiction of the Board and a water loss 
status list had been included in the packet.   

Compliance reports 

Bean Station, Bloomingdale, Chuckey, Cross Anchor, Hampton, Northwest, Northwest Henry County, 
Shady Grove, Sylvia-Tennessee City-Pond, Tarpley Shop, and West Cumberland Utility Districts have all 
submitted audits which reflect compliance with financial distress and/or water loss issues. 

Ms. Welborn stated there is nothing scheduled past the June meeting.    

At 11:40 am Ms. Hunter made the motion to adjourn and Mr. Moss seconded it.  The motion carried 
unanimously.   

Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Ann Butterworth      Joyce Welborn    
Chair        Utilities Board Manager  
 

7



Utility Management Review Board 
Case Study 

 
Case:   Surgoinsville Utility District, Hawkins County 
Manager:  Rita Dykes 
Customers:  937 water 
Validity Score:  66 
Non-revenue water: 12.1% 
 
The Surgoinsville Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two 
consecutive years with a negative change in net position as of April 30, 2013.  A 
financial and rate history is attached. 
 
The District operates a water treatment plant, but also has connections with First Utility 
District of Hawkins County and the City of Rogersville.  Those connections account for 
10% to 15% or the water sold. 
 
During 2012, the District paid for an accounting service to get four years of documents 
prepared for the auditor.  During 2013, the audits for FY09 thru FY12 were completed 
creating audit fees.  Since the audits are now current, the annual fees are reduced to 
normal.  Although rates were increased by 25% for the January 2013 billing cycle, an 
industry also drastically reduced its usage.  The reduction offset the rate increase to 
approximately 7% of the anticipated revenue.  In response the District is investigating 
the possibility of dropping the last tier on the rate schedule.  That alone would generate 
approximately $19,000 annually in sales. 
 
Simply because the expenses have stabilized , current projections (March 2014) reflect a 
positive change in net position of approximately $25,000 for the fiscal year ending April 
30, 2014. 
 
The District has agreed to do the billing and collecting for the new Town of Surgoinsville 
sewer collection system.  Any non-payment of sewer charges will result in the 
disconnection of water. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the District.  Staff will 
continue to monitor the District until an audit is received which reflects 
compliance. 

8



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year April 30 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Water revenues -$               251,705$       249,270$     314,502$     423,659$      386,707$  434,125$    411,187$    440,024$  450,806$    
Other revenues -$               11,211$         9,329$         27,411$       50,674$        48,216$    49,621$      58,139$      32,100$    22,747$      
Contributions 261,200$     51,823$        
Tot Revene -$               262,916$       258,599$     603,113$     526,156$      434,923$  483,746$    469,326$    472,124$  473,553$    

Tot Expenses -$               244,743$       238,717$     292,359$     390,418$      419,595$  412,371$    440,944$    466,132$  513,243$    

Operating Income -$               18,173$         19,882$       310,754$     135,738$      15,328$    71,375$      28,382$      5,992$      (39,690)$     

Interest Expense -$               21,471$         22,232$       21,856$       22,140$        20,926$    20,465$      20,074$      19,583$    19,065$      

Change net position (2,284)$      (3,298)$         (2,350)$        288,898$     113,598$      (5,598)$     50,910$      8,308$        (13,591)$   (58,755)$     

Additional Info
Principal payment -$           6,620$           6,976$         7,352$         7,760$          7,761$      7,641$        9,099$        9,587$      10,104$      
Depreciation -$               58,124$         57,372$       60,570$       67,926$        74,181$    77,338$      78,979$      84,228$    85,417$      

Water Rates
First 1,000 gallons 7.00$             7.00$           8.50$           8.50$            8.50$        8.50$          8.50$          8.50$        10.63$        
1,001 - 2,000 gallons 4.00$             4.00$           
1,000-20,000 gallons 5.00$           5.00$            5.00$        5.00$          5.00$          5.00$        6.25$          
2,001 - 100,000 gallons 2.50$             2.50$           
All Over 2.20$             2.20$           4.50$           4.50$            4.50$        4.50$          4.50$          4.50$        5.63$          
Customers 870 883              877              928               954           987             956             928           937             
Water Loss 34.99% 27.472% 32.975% 25.893% 28.998% 22.489%
Validity Score 66               
Non Revenue Water 12.10%

HISTORY FILE
SURGOINSVILLE UTILITY DISTRICT

9



10



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:   Unicoi Water Utility District, Unicoi County 
Manager:  Lee Bennett 
Customers:  1,806 water 
Water loss:  21.94% 
 
The Unicoi Water Utility District has been reported to the Board as having four 
consecutive years with a negative change in net assets in its water system.  A 
financial and rate history is attached. 
 
Initially the principal reason for the financially distressed condition of the District 
was related to exploratory drilling for two new water wells in an attempt to be 
independent of the Town.  Drilling for the two “dry” wells cost approximately 
$250,000.  However, the Board has utilized cash on hand instead of increasing 
rates as needed.   
 
The search for water being unsuccessful, the District signed a twenty-year contract 
in July 2011 to continue to purchase water from the Town of Erwin.  That purchase 
price is currently $2.30 per thousand gallons.   Because the rate being charged to 
the District is higher than the residential customer rate of the Town, the contract 
has a clause restricting an increase in the District rates until the residential rates of 
the Town’s customers are equal to the District’s rate. 
 
At its meeting on April 8, 2014, the Board of Commissioners voted to increase the 
minimum bill by $8.00 to $33.00, and all usage over 1,500 gallons from $4.50 to 
$7.25 per thousand.  They also voted to review the rates annually beginning 
January 1, 2015, and increase them by the cost of living, any increases from the 
Town of Erwin and/or other special circumstances. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board endorse the actions of the District.  Staff 
will continue to monitor the case until an audit is received which reflects 
compliance. 

11



 Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year September 30 2010 2011 2012 2013
Water revenues 800,689$         753,661$         818,047$         833,256$         
Other revenues 87,800$           68,712$           55,966$           58,316$           
Grant revenue 108,600$         

Total Operating Revenues 997,089$         822,373$         874,013$         891,572$         

Total Operating Expenses 847,014$         873,887$         887,284$         909,841$         

Operating Income 150,075$         (51,514)$          (13,271)$          (18,269)$          

Interest Expense 30,037$           94,204$           106,098$         107,274$         
Exploratory/dry wells expense (132,766)$        (123,821)$        

Change in Net Assets (12,728)$          (269,539)$        (119,369)$        (125,543)$        

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 549,832$         68,847$           77,480$           82,242$           
Depreciation 75,985$           82,063$           96,248$           114,215$         

Water Rates
Residential May-14
0-1,500 gallons 23.50$             23.50$             24.00$             25.00$             33.00$                        
All over 3.85$               3.85$               3.95$               4.50$               7.25$                          
Water customers 1,799               1,806               1,801               1,834               
Water Loss 20.040% 21.940% 27.800% COLA as necessary
Validity Score 88 every January 1st
Non revenue water 15.80%

UNICOI WATER UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

12



13



14



15



16



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:  Cagle-Fredonia Utility District, Sequatchie County 
Manager: Lora Farley  
Customers: 873 water 
Validity Score: 80 
Non-revenue water:  6.5% 
 
The Cagle-Fredonia Utility District has been reported to the Board as having two 
consecutive years with a negative change in net position in its water system as of 
December 31, 2013.  The financial and rate history is reflected on the attached sheet. 
 
The District purchases its water from Big Creek UD. Current cost of the water is $4.25 
per thousand gallons.  Water costs have increased approximately $33,000 between FY 
11 and FY 13. Approximately $30,000 in other expenses have increased during the same 
time period. 
 
The District is projecting an annual increase in health insurance premiums from $12,000 
to $40,000 in FY 14.  This cost increase was associated in part with adding the 
commissioners to the plan and changing insurance companies.  The current plan is 
through an affiliate of Tennessee Association of Utility Districts.     
 
The District increased its rates $1.50 per 1,000 gallons effective April 2014. Due to this 
increase, the budget has been revised to show a projected positive change in net 
position of $24,658 for the 2014 fiscal year. 
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the Cagle-Freedonia 
Utility District.  The District will remain under the jurisdiction until an audit is 
received which reflects compliance. 

17



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year December 31 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Water revenues 411,566$         385,134$         376,800$         414,046$      448,114$         
Other revenues 77,984$           49,899$           62,820$           40,882$        42,745$           
Grant revenue 46,017$           

Total Operating Revenues 535,567$         435,033$         439,620$         454,928$      490,859$         

Total Operating Expenses 417,757$         439,391$         395,380$         419,393$      451,639$         

Operating Income 117,810$         (4,358)$            44,240$           35,535$        39,220$           

Interest Expense 49,016$           53,511$           47,369$           46,690$        45,980$           
Restitution repayment 32,849$           
Change in Net Assets 68,794$           (57,869)$          29,720$           (11,155)$       (6,760)$            

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 13,535$           9,039$             15,180$           15,857$        16,566$           
Depreciation 83,376$           89,995$           88,221$           88,361$        89,120$           

Water Rates
Residential
0 - 1,000 gallons residential 20.70$             20.70$             22.20$             22.20$          23.70$             
0 - 1,000 gallons commercial 27.70$             27.70$             29.20$             29.20$          30.70$             
1,001 - 10,000 gallons 6.06$               6.06$               6.56$               6.56$            8.06$               
All over 6.56$               6.56$               7.06$               7.06$            8.56$               
Warren County rates 4.41$               4.41$               
Water customers 804                  774                  834                  857               873                  
Water Loss 10.300% 10.984% 10.350%
Validity Score 83 80
Non revenue water 6.80% 6.50%

CAGLE-FREEDONIA UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

18



19



20



21



UTILITY MANAGEMENT REVIEW BOARD 
Case Study 

 
Case:    North Utility District of Rhea County 
Manager:   Sue Durham 
Customers:   992 
Validity Score:  74 
Non-Revenue Water: 10% 
 
 
The North Utility District of Rhea County has been reported to the Board as 
having two consecutive years with a negative change in net position as of 
September 30, 2013.  The financial and rate history is attached. 
 
At the end of 2011 Huber Engineered Woods, a specialty building products 
manufacturer, shut down operations.  This followed a 75% layoff of staff the 
prior year.  This plant accounted for five to seven million gallons of water use 
per month, and approximately 50% of the usage in the entire system.  This 
shut down was a contributing factor to the negative change in net position 
for FY11-FY12.   
 
Until July 1, 2013, the District purchased all its water from the City of Spring 
City.  On January 1, 2013, Spring City raised the rates that the District 
purchased its water from $1.79 per 1,000 gallons (up to 4.5 million gallons) 
to $5.09 per 1,000 gallons (up to 4.5 million gallons).  The rate for anything 
over 4.5 million gallons was raised from $2.20 per 1,000 gallons to $5.50 per 
1,000 gallons.  On July 1, 2013, the District began purchasing water from the 
City of Rockwood for $1.85 per 1,000 gallons. 
 
Effective May 1, 2014, the District raised its 2,000 gallon minimum bill from 
$25.00 to $26.00.  Anything over the minimum was raised from $8.00 to 
$9.50 per 1,000 gallons.  Current projections by the District show a positive 
change in net position for FY 14 due to the increased rates combined with the 
decrease in water expense.   
 
Staff recommends the Board endorse the actions of the North Utility 
District of Rhea County.  The District will remain under the 
jurisdiction of the UMRB until an audit is received which reflects 
compliance. 

22



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Fiscal Year September 30 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Water revenues 425,752$         453,214$         463,999$         422,789$         525,189$         
Other revenues 56,753$           46,977$           41,452$           45,542$           37,318$           
Grant revenue/donated lines 492,981$         

Total Operating Revenues 975,486$         500,191$         505,451$         468,331$         562,507$         

Total Operating Expenses 344,504$         333,570$         339,467$         344,939$         447,337$         

Operating Income 630,982$         166,621$         165,984$         123,392$         115,170$         

Interest Expense 126,805$         128,431$         121,629$         123,725$         120,384$         

Change in Net Assets 504,177$         38,190$           44,355$           (333)$               (5,214)$            

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 76,699$           67,622$           61,804$           61,747$           68,875$           
Depreciation 109,980$         118,822$         119,444$         121,425$         126,809$         

Water Rates
Residential
0-2,000 gallons 22.00$             22.00$             22.00$             23.00$             25.00$             
2,001 - 50,000 gallons 7.50$               7.50$               7.50$               
All over 6.50$               6.50$               6.50$               7.75$               8.00$               
Water customers 925                  949                  971                  997                  992                  
Water Loss 12.327% 11.764% 12.350%
Validity Score 68 74
Non revenue water 6.60% 10.00%

NORTH UTILITY DISTRICT OF RHEA COUNTY
HISTORY FILE

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



Utility Management Review Board 

History of Lone Oak Utility District, Sequatchie County 

A creation petition was presented to the UMRB in December 1999.  At the time, the UMRB only had 
comment authority on the petition – not approval.  A utility district was created by the Sequatchie County 
Executive in accordance with state law.  The entire system was built with EPA, CDBG  and TAG funds.  
Except for a $17,763 bank loan from 2005, the District never had debt.  The bank loan was not approved 
by the Division of Local Finance.  Tennessee American also made a “like kind investment in the 
Company’s system in the amount of $260,000.” 

The District has an Operations and Maintenance (O & M) Agreement, signed in 2002, with Tennessee 
American Water Company.  Tennessee American treats all the District customers as if they were theirs 
and bills as such.  Therefore, the information required to be on utility district bills by statute is not 
included on the bills received by the District’s customers.  That information includes date, time and place 
of commissioners meetings.  The phone number shown on the bill is that of Tennessee American.  If 
someone wants service in the Lone Oak area, they must contact Tennessee American because there is no 
phone number for Lone Oak. 

The O & M Agreement is for a period of forty years and gives Tennessee American the right to install 
lines and taps within the service area of the District and own those lines and taps.  Although Lone Oak 
water is purchased from Walden’s Ridge Utility District, the agreement provides that Tennessee American 
is the “exclusive provider for the total water requirements of the customers served” from the Lone Oak 
system. Walden’s Ridge purchases 100% of their water from Tennessee American.  If Tennessee 
American is required to install, relocate and/or replace capital items (unit of property), “in every such 
instance, the unit of property shall be and remain the property of” Tennessee American. 

The agreement allows Tennessee American to bill and collect on behalf of the District. The accountants of 
the District are to review – at least annually – the system of accounts maintained by Tennessee American 
and report the results to both parties.  Tennessee American is to pay the District no more than $12,000 
annually in order to pay reasonable costs of: 1) Board of Director expenses, 2) Engineering, Legal and 
Accounting Expenses, 3) Liability Insurance and Bonds and 4) Miscellaneous Supplies and Expenses. 

Around 2004, some water lines which had been installed in an area adjacent to Walden’s Ridge were 
purchased from Lone Oak for $123,227.  The note was for a lump sum of $33,227 and payments of 
$1,000 per month for ninety (90) consecutive months at zero percent interest.  That loan was not 
approved by the Division of Local Finance. 

Lone Oak was first reported to the Board based on three consecutive years with a net loss based on the 
December 31, 2006, audited financial statements.  Based on the December 31, 2006 audit, a revenue 
increase of approximately 500% would be needed to generate a positive change in net assets. 

District officials were notified by mail dated December 15, 2009, that they were scheduled to appear 
before the UMRB on April 1, 2010, with an update of the status of the District.  Mr. John Lyman, 
Chairman of the District, was e-mailed on February 16, 2010 regarding the April 1 appearance with staff 
offering to meet with District officials to prepare for the meeting.  Staff also spoke with Mr. Lyman on 
March 15, 2010.  During that conversation, the relationship with Walden’s Ridge was discussed and Mr. 
Lyman stated that he would get information to me regarding the appearance and the relationship.  

34



The Board voted at the April 2010 meeting to require the District to have discussions with Sequatchie 
County regarding a solution to the financially distressed condition of the District and to require the 
District to review the possibility of becoming something other than a utility district.  A report was to be 
made to the Board in no longer than one year.  At that meeting, the Board was told that the December 
31, 2009 audit was received by the District the night before, but had not been filed with the Division of 
Municipal Audit. 

Staff received a call from Tennessee American Water that the Sequatchie County Commission was not 
convinced that it would take over the District for fear that it would have to repay the State Tribal 
Assistance Grant that it received when the District was created.  The takeover of Lone Oak by Walden’s 
Ridge Utility District is not desirable to Sequatchie County officials. 

Staff has been told that nothing has changed in the status of the District.  District officials have met with 
Sequatchie County and the City of Dunlap.  It appears that the hindrance in any sort of takeover of the 
District is prevented by the fact that any assets that must be assumed have a high depreciation expense 
associated with them. 

District officials have told the Board since approximately 2009 that they were working with both 
Sequatchie County and the City of Dunlap regarding a takeover of the Lone Oak system.  Nothing 
appears to be happening. 

Staff has no further suggestions except the consolidation with Walden’s Ridge Utility District.  That 
consolidation has been deemed unacceptable by the Lone Oak commissioners and the Sequatchie County 
commissioners. 

 

35



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
FYE 12/31 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Water revenues 16,556$        9,174$          9,790$          10,702$        11,588$       12,061$        11,242$      12,508$     25,152$       
Other revenues -$                 -$                  19,361$        11,217$        10,480$       10,325$        10,803$      11,167$     650$            

Total Oper Revenue 16,556$        9,174$          29,151$        21,919$        22,068$       22,386$        22,045$      23,675$     25,802$       

Total Oper Expenses 66,902$        66,717$        70,307$        69,716$        72,309$       69,064$        70,594$      77,623$     51,971$       

Operating Income (50,346)$      (57,543)$       (41,156)$       (47,797)$       (50,241)$      (46,678)$       (48,549)$     (53,948)$    (26,169)$      

Interest Expense 1,016$          2,980$          2,368$          1,708$          1,001$         248$             

Change in Net Position (51,362)$      (60,523)$       (43,524)$       (49,505)$       (51,242)$      (46,926)$       (48,549)$     (53,948)$    (26,169)$      

Supplemental Information
Principal payment 1,800$          7,884$          8,497$          9,156$          9,863$         7,900$          
Depreciation 54,005$        54,765$        54,765$        54,875$        54,885$       54,562$        54,383$      54,113$     35,204$       

Water Rates
First 2,000 gallons 31.39$          31.39$          31.39$          31.39$          31.39$         31.39$          31.39$        31.39$       31.39$         
over 2,000 gallons 5.25$            5.25$            5.25$            5.25$            5.25$           5.25$            5.25$          5.25$         5.25$           
Customers 106 106               101               112 120 120 121 125 129
Water Loss 18.50% 18.27% 18.58% 16.38% 86/15.7%

LONE OAK UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

36



0% Growth rate Growth rate Growth rate
 Audited Projected Projection Projection Projection
FYE 12/31 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Water revenues 25,152$        25,152$     25,152$     25,152$     25,152$     
Other revenues 650$            650$          650$          650$          650$          

128% 32,195$     32,195$     32,195$     
Total Oper Revenue 25,802$      25,802$   57,997$   57,997$    57,997$   

Total Oper Expenses 51,971$      53,010$   3% 54,600$   56,238$    57,925$   

Operating Income (26,169)$      (27,208)$    3,396$       1,758$       71$            

Interest Expense

Change in Net Position (26,169)$    (27,208)$  3,396$     1,758$      71$           

Supplemental Information
Principal payment -$              -$              -$              
Depreciation 35,204$        54,885$     54,885$     54,885$     54,885$     

Water Rates
First 2,000 gallons 31.39$         
over 2,000 gallons 5.25$           
Customers 129
Water Loss 86/15.7%

Lone Oak Utility District
Projections

37



38



39



Summary of City of Elkton vs. South Giles Utility District 

 

The City states fire hydrant rates are unreasonable and unjust based on: 

The City allowed the South Giles Utility District to enter its corporate city limits in April 1965 

The first contact was signed in February 1966 

A water tap was made to City Hall in July 1966 

“Knowledgeable” sources say there were approximately 18 hydrants in the City at the beginning. 

The City has always been charged the minimum residential customer rate for each fire hydrant. The 
current rate is $24.50 for 1,800 gallons on each of the 42 hydrants. 

The City buys the hydrant and pays for its installation at a cost of $2,000 to $2,500 gallons.  The City 
does all the maintenance and upkeep of the hydrant after paying a $600 tap fee. 

The Elkton Fire Department is required to maintain the amount used for fight fires and report it to the 
District. 

The average monthly usage for all the hydrants in the City is 1,295 gallons, 1,446 gallons and 683 
gallons for 2010, 2011, and 2012, respectively. 

The City proposed to pay $24.50 monthly for two residential accounts and $50 monthly for all 
hydrants – in total. 

  

40



The Utility District states the fire hydrant rates are neither unreasonable nor unjust: 

The South Giles Utility District started in 1965 to serve “drinking” water.  The only requirement for a 
fire hydrant at the time was a six-inch water line and six-inch water lines were installed throughout 
the system. 

During construction, the City asked for and was granted 18 hydrants installed at City expense.  The 
water bill was $50 per year per hydrant.  Before construction was complete, two more hydrants were 
requested and approved. 

Each time there was a fire in Elkton or the hydrants were flushed or opened for any reason, the UD 
had a leak resulting from water hammer, lines being drained or air in the lines. 

In the early 1970s, a factory come to town and needed fire protection.  The City and the factory 
agreed to share the cost in the installation of a 300,000 gallon water tank.  Since the factory didn’t 
pay its share, the City did.  The leaks in the system decreased after the tank was installed and usage 
of the hydrants decreased.  Two more hydrants were added to the City’s system. 

Early 1980s, the City and the UD agreed that the City would be responsible for repairs and 
maintenance on all hydrants. 

August 1981 Five more hydrants were added 

August 1983 UD raised the rates and started charging a minimum monthly bill instead of the $50 per 
hydrant per year. 

1988 - 300,000 gallon tank had to be inspected and painted costing $14,650 

1992 - the UD replaced the tank to increase the fire flow for the City, costing $287,979.  The 
minimum bill was increased to $12.00 

1996 - UD spent over $20,000 to replace a ten-inch line for fire protection at a factory. 

Giles County Rescue Squad is paying the same rate for the hydrant at its Prospect Building plus the 
normal residential water service. Water rates were increased to $16.00 

2001 - a customer north of the City agreed to pay the same rate for a fire hydrant plus the normal 
residential water service. 

2003 - a BBQ establishment agreed to pay the same rate for a fire hydrant plus the normal residential 
bill. 

July 2005 - 2 hydrants were installed at the State of Tennessee Weigh Station, and the lines were 
upgraded around the Elkton school, so that a pumper truck could hook to any hydrant around the 
school with adequate pressure to fight fires. 

2009 - minimum bill was changed from 0 – 2,000 gallons to 0 – 1,500 gallons 

2010 - State Welcome Center started paying two regular rates for the hydrants plus regular water 
service. Rates were increased to $19.00 

2012 - UD had second year with a negative change in net assets. Rates increased to $24.50 and 
minimum usage was changed to 0-1,800 gallons 

41



The UD has spent over $915,000 to improve fire protection for the City. Spread over 40 years for 
depreciation is $1,906.25 per month.  City pays $1,029 per month.  There are 1,150 customers 
outside the city limits and 250 inside.  Only those inside have an ISO rating of 6. 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



 
STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
Justin P. Wilson                                            OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL      Robert T. Lee 
  Comptroller James K. Polk State Office Building General Counsel 

505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1700 
Nashville, Tennessee  37243-1402 

Phone (615) 401-7786 
Fax (615) 741-1776 

 
 

 

May 21, 2014 
 
 

To:  Members of the Utility Management Review Board  

From:  Betsy Knotts, Assistant General Counsel 

Subject:  Brief synopsis of the underlying data submitted by Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. to 
the Utility Management Review Board related to the 2009 Webb Creek Utility District rate study 

 

You should have received a disk with all the underlying data used by Bart Kreps, a rate consultant 
with Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., when he prepared the Webb Creek Utility District Cost of 
Service Study dated July 16, 2009.  As you know, the disk has many files on it.  I have divided the 
files into two categories of information:  Analysis and Data.  I would recommend reading the 
analysis and referencing the backup data as needed.  

Analysis 

• ATT0027_2009Budget:  This is a 2009 Budget Trend Analysis for Webb Creek 
Utility District. 

• Consumption Analysis:  Average flow amounts for Bent Creek are referenced on 
pages three, four, and seven. 

• Exhibit 2:  Follow-up memorandum to the 2009 Cost of Service Study.  Pages two 
and three have a useful summary of the Water Rate Structure Review and 
Recommendations of Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 

• Exhibit 3:  Bent Creek’s argument that a rate analysis containing an estimated 
customer cost component and a system depreciation factor is the most accurate 
method.    

118



• Exhibit 5:  Water and Wastewater Rate and Cost of Service Study prepared by 
Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. dated July 16, 2009. 

• Webb Creek Rate Model:  Schedule 1 on page six shows projected revenues, costs, 
usage, and water rates of Webb Creek Utility District. 

Data   

• 2009 Budget Allocation for Webb Creek Utility District 

• Capital Asset Allocation for Webb Creek Utility District 

• 2007 Budget Allocation for Webb Creek Utility District 

• Customer Turn Offs for Webb Creek Utility District 

• Exhibit 4:  Bent Creek Golf Village invoices from January 31, 2011, through January 
31, 2014. 

• Monthly High:  Calculation pertaining to monthly usage. 

• Back up for Rate Review:  Compilation of the most important data used to prepare 
the study.   

• RTF 2008 Budget for Webb Creek Utility District 

• Water Totals By Month:  The last page has a useful table that shows what Bent 
Creek was billed in 2007 and 2008. 

• DOC041014-002 through DOC04014-046:  These are primarily usage schedules and 
breakdowns for the years 2008 through 2011; please note that the information 
relevant to Bent Creek Golf Village is highlighted, so you can scan the documents 
for the relevant highlighted sections.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

119



 Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
FYE 12/31 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Water revenues 324,204$       384,198$       409,952$       417,914$       424,986$       443,932$       479,836$       492,462$       482,810$       482,683$       594,595$       
Sewer revenues 266,905$       315,743$       279,766$       250,462$       244,570$       253,194$       310,250$       389,433$       418,307$       429,971$       520,961$       
Other revenues 21,947$        19,672$        14,370$        8,758$          27,368$        65,009$        25,911$        13,451$        16,327$        34,670$        13,874$        

Total Revenue 613,056$    719,613$    704,088$    677,134$    696,924$    762,135$    815,997$    895,346$    917,444$    947,324$    1,129,430$ 

Total Operat 
Exp 551,575$    587,239$    692,919$    742,312$    772,461$    827,817$    796,242$    880,870$    941,119$    1,048,735$ 1,044,821$ 

Operating 
Income 61,481$        132,374$       11,169$        (65,178)$       (75,537)$       (65,682)$       19,755$        14,476$        (23,675)$       (101,411)$     84,609$        

Interest 
Expense 24,971$        8,876$          31,372$        63,062$        59,841$        57,280$        55,411$        54,526$        54,044$        52,771$        52,282$        

Change/Net A 36,510$      123,498$    (20,203)$     (128,240)$   (135,378)$   (122,962)$   (35,656)$     (40,050)$     (77,719)$     (154,182)$   32,327$      

Add'l info
Principal payme 388,409$       51,378$        62,942$        56,756$        57,925$        49,962$        15,858$        16,586$        17,348$        18,144$        18,829$        
Depreciation 91,239$        89,486$        122,649$       159,281$       159,069$       148,561$       145,190$       138,401$       143,989$       142,733$       131,216$       

Water Rates 7/1/2011 1/1/2012
Water minimum bill 52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          52.70$          61.93$               
over 3,000 galls 3.77$            3.77$            3.77$            3.77$            3.77$            4.03$            6.53$                 
over 4,000 galls 3.77$            3.77$            3.77$            
Water customer 610               610               610               610               683               742               738               738               744 761.00$             
Sewer minimum bill 45.54$          45.54$          45.54$          45.54$          45.54$          45.54$          45.54$          59.41$          62.54$          75.05$               
over 4,000 galls 2.63$            2.63$            2.63$            
over 3,000 galls 2.63$            2.63$            2.63$            2.63$            8.84$            3.70$            3.70$                 
Sewer customers 395               395               253               239               253               334               320               320               321               324.00$             
Outdoor Rsorts 8,744$          8,744$          8,744$          8,744$          8,744$          17,487$        17,487$        14,258$        15,010$        18,013$             
Outdoor Resorts units 400               400               400               400               400               384               384               384               384 384
Water Loss 13.818% 15.966% 19.280% 22.238% 17.292%
Validity Score 77
Non-revenue water 4.90%

WEBB CREEK UTILITY DISTRICT
HISTORY FILE

120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



 
STATE OF TENNESSEE 

COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 
Justin P. Wilson                                            OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL      Robert T. Lee 
  Comptroller James K. Polk State Office Building General Counsel 

505 Deaderick Street, Suite 1700 
Nashville, Tennessee  37243-1402 

Phone (615) 401-7786 
Fax (615) 741-1776 

 
 

May 21, 2014 
 
 

To:  Members of the Utility Management Review Board 

From:  Betsy Knotts, Assistant General Counsel 

Subject:  Commissioner removal proceedings related to the Northeast Henry County Utility District 

 

The Utility Management Review Board (the “UMRB”) reviewed the investigative audit of 
Northeast Henry County Utility District (the “District”) at its August 1, 2013, meeting and moved to 
conduct a contested case hearing on whether the utility district commissioners should be removed 
from office.  Under T.C.A. § 7-82-307(b)(2)(A),    

[t]he board shall review those reports and may conduct a contested case hearing on the 
question of whether utility district commissioners should be removed from office for 
knowingly or willfully committing misconduct in office, knowingly or willfully neglecting 
to fulfill any duty imposed upon the member by law, or failing to fulfill the commissioner’s 
or commissioners’ fiduciary responsibility in the operation or oversight of the district. 

A contested case hearing brought pursuant to T.C.A. § 7-82-307(b)(2)(A) must be based upon the 
allegations in the Comptroller’s published investigative audit report.  In other words, the UMRB is 
limited to the five allegations in the District’s investigative report dated February 7, 2013.   

Since the August 2013 meeting, new case law has been issued that provides clearer guidance 
relating to the grounds for removal of a commissioner.  The case law defines a commissioner’s 
fiduciary responsibility as the duty to act with utmost good faith for the benefit of the district and 
not themselves—when exercising the duties, powers, and authority enumerated in Chapter 82, Title 
7 of the Tennessee Code Annotated.  It is also important to note that there is a heightened burden of 
proof when demonstrating that a public officer knowingly or willfully committed misconduct in 
office, or knowingly or willfully neglected to perform any statutorily required duty of office.   At 
the June 5, 2014, meeting, the UMRB’s job will be to determine whether to pursue a contested case 
hearing on the five allegations from the investigative audit or to dismiss the matter. The District 
Commissioners will be present at the meeting to provide an update and to answer questions.       

157



158



159



160



161



162



163



Utility Management Review Board 

Compliance Reports 

June 5, 2014 

 

Carderview Utility District 

June 30, 2013  Validity Score  68 

Non-revenue water  4.1% 

Change in net position $9,805 

Intermont Utility District 

December 31, 2013 Validity Score 83 

Non-revenue water 10.5% 

Change in net position $207.40 

Northeast Henry County Utility District 

June 30, 2013                 Validity Score 72 

                                          Non-revenue water 12.6% 

                                          Change in net position $35,255  

Sneedville Utility District,      

March 31, 2013               Validity Score 69;  

                                            Non-Revenue water 5.8% 

                                            Change in net position  $58,238 (grants $119,021) 

Webb Creek Utility District 

December 31, 2013 Validity Score 77 

Non-revenue water 4.9% 

Change in net position $32,237 

 

164



 

 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
COMPTROLLER OF THE TREASURY 

DEPARTMENT OF AUDIT 
DIVISION OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUDIT 

SUITE 1500 
JAMES K. POLK STATE OFFICE BUILDING 

NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE  37243-1402 
PHONE (615) 401-7841 

 

January 31, 2014 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Lieutenant Governor Ron Ramsey 
  Speaker of the Senate 
 

Representative Beth Harwell  
Speaker of the House of Representatives 

   
FROM: Jim Arnette, Director 
  Division of Local Government Audit 
 
SUBJECT: Water Loss Filing per Section 7-82-401(i) and 68-221-1010 (d)(3), 
  Tennessee Code Annotated 
 
Beginning in January 2013, the Utility Management Review Board and the Water and 
Wastewater Financing Board began requiring utility districts, cities and other water 
systems to use a water loss evaluation tool developed by the American Water Works 
Association (AWWA).  This tool produces a number of performance indicators and 
calculates a “validity score” based on information entered by system personnel. 
 
The attached spreadsheet presents one of these performance indicators and the validity 
score for each financial report submitted between January 1, 2013 and December 31, 2013. 
 
Additional information regarding the spreadsheet is included as an attachment within this 
reporting package. 
  
If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me. 
 
Enclosure 
 
xc:  Mr. Justin P. Wilson 
 Comptroller of the Treasury 
 
 Senator Steve Southerland, Chair 
 Senate Standing Committee - Energy, Agriculture and Natural Resources 
 
 Representative Curtis Halford, Chair 
 House Standing Committee - Agriculture and Natural Resources 
  

165



 

 

Description of Data  
Legislative Report Due February 1, 2014 
 
 
Non-Revenue Water as Percent by Cost of Operating System 
 
Non-Revenue water is defined as: 
the cost of water that is produced and/or purchased that does not produce any revenue for 
the system (non-revenue water).  It includes apparent losses, real losses, unbilled meter 
and unbilled unmetered amounts. 
 
Cost to operate the system is defined as: 
costs for operations, maintenance and any annually incurred costs for long-term upkeep of 
the system, such as repayment of capital bonds for infrastructure expansion or 
improvement.  Typical costs include employee salaries and benefits, materials, equipment, 
insurance, fees, administrative costs and all other costs that exist to sustain the drinking 
water supply.  These costs should not include any costs to operate wastewater, biosolids or 
other systems outside of drinking water.  
 
The performance indicator “non-revenue water as a percent by cost of operating system” is 
determined by:  

(1) converting the non-revenue water, which is expressed in million gallons, to a 
monetary amount; and 

(2) calculating the cost to operate the system; 
(3) expressing the monetary cost of non-revenue water as a percentage of the cost to 

operate the system. 
 
Validity Score 
 
The validity score helps assess the reliability of the data that was used to produce the 
performance indicator.  The maximum validity score is 100.  The validity score is calculated 
based on data entered by system personnel.  The input data ranks the reliability input 
items based on specific criteria established by the American Water Works Association 
(AWWA). 
 
 
Excessive Water Loss 
 
The Utility Management Review Board and the Water and Wastewater Financing Board 
developed and adopted a phase-in schedule related to the definition of excessive water loss.  
For the 2013 calendar year, a water system is deemed to have excessive water loss if it has 
(1) a validity score of 65 or less or (2) non-revenue water as a percent by cost of operating 
system is 30% or more.  These designated levels will change every other year until 2020, 
when a validity score of 80 or less or non-revenue water as a percent by cost of operating 
system of 20% will be considered indicative of excessive water loss. 
 

166



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Adams-Cedar Hill Water System June 30, 2013 3.7 82

Alamo June 30, 2012 11.2 67

Alcoa June 30, 2012 3.0 84

Alexandria June 30, 2013 25.6 83

Algood June 30, 2013 9.2 82

Allardt June 30, 2013 19.1 79

Alpha-Talbott Utility District December 31, 2012 17.2 87

Anderson County Water Authority June 30, 2013 7.3 84

Arthur-Shawanee Utility District June 30, 2013 15.9 71

Athens June 30, 2013 8.7 94

Atoka June 30, 2012 1.2 94

Atwood June 30, 2013 20.7 69

Bangham Utility District May 31, 2013 19.3 80

Bartlett June 30, 2013 3.8 82

Baxter June 30, 2013 8.6 78

Bedford County Utility District June 30, 2013 6.7 81

Bell Buckle June 30, 2013 2.3 79

Belvidere Rural Utility District September 30, 2012 8.5 67

Benton June 30, 2012 9.7 58

Big Creek Utility District February 28, 2013 6.9 78

Big Sandy June 30, 2013 8.7 75

Blountville Utility District June 30, 2013 9.6 85

Bluff City June 30, 2012 5.7 72

Bolivar June 30, 2012 Schedule Not Included in Report
Bon Aqua-Lyles Utility District August 31, 2012 Schedule Incomplete or inaccurate
Bon De Croft Utility District June 30, 2013 3.0 75

Brentwood June 30, 2013 17.2 85

Brighton June 30, 2012 7.0 66

Bristol June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Bristol-Bluff City Suburban Utility District July 31, 2012 20.2 82

Brownlow Utility District June 30, 2013 1.7 84

Brownsville Energy Authority June 30, 2013 0.4 100

Bruceton June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Cagle-Fredonia Utility District December 31, 2012 6.8 83

Calhoun-Charleston Utility District September 30, 2012 14.6 79

Page 1 of 11 167



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Camden June 30, 2013 19.3 84

Carderview Utility District June 30, 2012 3.3 71
Incorrect Schedule Included in Report - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Carthage June 30, 2013 14.6 80

Caryville-Jacksboro Utility Commission June 30, 2013 2.1 95

Castalian Springs-Bethpage Utility District August 31, 2013 13.8 80

Celina June 30, 2013 4.0 83

Center Grove-Winchester Springs Utility District September 30, 2012 16.1 83

Centerville June 30, 2013 1.6 82

Chanute Pall Mall Utility District June 30, 2013 13.8 83

Cherokee Hills Utility District December 31, 2012 Schedule Not Included in Report
Clarksburg Utility District December 31, 2012 4.8 71

Clarksville June 30, 2013 7.9 87

Clearfork Utility District December 31, 2012 16.6 59

Cleveland June 30, 2013 7.8 82

Clifton June 30, 2013 15.3 81

Clinton June 30, 2013 8.1 87

Cold Springs Utility District August 31, 2013 4.5 81

Collinwood June 30, 2011 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Columbia June 30, 2013 6.6 78

Consolidated Utility District of Rutherford County September 30, 2013 5.6 83

Cookeville June 30, 2013 11.7 83

Cookeville Boat Dock Utility District December 31, 2012 13.7 84

Cookeville Boat Dock Utility District December 31, 2011 19.8 84

Cordell Hull Utility District December 31, 2012 8.1 84

County Wide Utility District December 31, 2012 4.6 69

Cowan June 30, 2013 16.3 75

Crab Orchard Utility District December 31, 2012 10.2 67

Crockett Mills Utility District December 31, 2012 12.4 67

Cumberland City June 30, 2013 12.8 75

Cumberland Gap June 30, 2012 42.3 66

Cumberland Heights Utility District July 31, 2013 10.5 83

Cumberland Utility District September 30, 2012 14.7 91

Cunningham Utility District December 31, 2012 .1 93

Cunningham-East Montgomery Water Treatment Plant December 31, 2012 0.0 97

Page 2 of 11 168



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Dandridge June 30, 2012 7.9 80

Dayton June 30, 2012 12.2 88

Decatur June 30, 2012 9.1 75

Decatur June 30, 2013 5.7 77

Decaturville June 30, 2013 13.6 67

Decherd June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Dekalb Utility District June 30, 2013 11.8 85

Dewhite Utility District December 31, 2012 19.8 77

Double Springs Utility District April 30, 2013 9.8 83

Dover June 30, 2013 9.1 84

Dowelltown-Liberty Waterworks June 30, 2013 0.6 85

Dresden June 30, 2012 8.6 71

Dry Run Utility District September 30, 2013 37.9 75

Duck River Utility Commission June 30, 2013 0 72

Duck River Utility Commission June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format

Dunlap June 30, 2012 54
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Dyersburg June 30, 2012 1.0 76

Dyersburg Suburban Utility District January 31, 2013 10.9 66

Dyersburg Suburban Utility District January 31, 2012 10.9 66

East Fork Utility District December 31, 2012 7.6 73

East Montgomery Utility District December 31, 2012 10.7 94

East Sevier County Utility District June 30, 2012 52.5 58

Eastside Utility District October 31, 2012 14.6 82

Elizabethton June 30, 2013 18.7 77

Englewood June 30, 2013 15.5 69

Englewood June 30, 2012 0 Schedule Incomplete or inaccurate
Erin June 30, 2013 32.3 80

Erwin June 30, 2013 6.8 86

Etowah June 30, 2012 Schedule Not Included in Report
Fairview Utility District December 31, 2012 9.0 79

Fall Creek Falls Utility District December 31, 2012 14.0 83

Fall River Utility District December 31, 2012 12.7 78

Fayetteville June 30, 2013 17.2 81

Fentress County Utility District June 30, 2013 1.0 80

Page 3 of 11 169



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

First Utility District of Carter County October 31, 2012 10316080.2 81 Schedule Incomplete or inaccurate
First Utility District of Hardin County March 31, 2013 15.2 77

First Utility District of Knox County December 31, 2012 6.7 75

First Utility District of Tipton County December 31, 2012 5.3 75

Foster Falls Utility District December 31, 2011 Schedule Not Included in Report
Franklin June 30, 2013 17.9 84

Friendsville June 30, 2012 28.4 62

Gallatin June 30, 2013 4.4 79

Gallaway June 30, 2013 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Gatlinburg June 30, 2013 12.6 71

Germantown June 30, 2013 3.6 80

Gibson June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Gibson County Municipal Water District November 30, 2012 6.2 74

Gladeville Utility District December 31, 2012 7.9 77

Gleason June 30, 2012 8.6 71

Glen Hills Utility District June 30, 2013 4.8 90

Grand Junction June 30, 2012 Schedule Not Included in Report
Grandview Utility District December 31, 2012 7.8 67

Graysville June 30, 2012 Schedule Not Included in Report
Greeneville June 30, 2013 12.6 90

Griffith Creek Utility District December 31, 2012 5.2 79

H.B. and T.S. Utility District September 30, 2012 10.0 85

Hallsdale-Powell Utility District March 31, 2013 12.4 72

Hampton Utility District November 30, 2012 40.9 63

Harbor Utility District June 30, 2013 4.7 71

Harpeth Valley Utility District December 31, 2012 4.5 68

Harriman June 30, 2013 20.7 79

Hartsville/Trousdale County Utility Fund June 30, 2012 19.0 69

Haywood County Utility District June 30, 2013 31.4 97

Haywood County Utility District June 30, 2012 29.7 97

Henderson June 30, 2013 14.7 71

Hendersonville Utility District June 30, 2013 4.4 95

Henning June 30, 2012 1.3 42

Henry June 30, 2012 18.4 73

Hillsville Utility District December 31, 2012 14.9 73

Page 4 of 11 170



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Hixson Utility District April 30, 2013 4.2 81

Hohenwald June 30, 2013 48 81

Hollow Rock June 30, 2012 6.8 72
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Hollow Rock June 30, 2013 6.7 73

Holston Utility District February 28, 2013 9.6 82

Hornbeak Utility District April 30, 2013 1.9 78

Hornsby June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Humboldt June 30, 2013 2.7 76

Huntingdon June 30, 2012 8.4 74

Huntland June 30, 2013 8 75

Huntsville Utility District August 31, 2012 6.9 73
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Huntsville Utility District August 31, 2013 8.3 84

Intermont Utility District December 31, 2012 15.1 83

Iron City Utility District December 31, 2012 .7 86

Jackson County Utility District December 31, 2012 13.9 75

Jackson County Utility District December 31, 2011 15.3 75
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Jackson Energy Authority June 30, 2013 5.9 90

Jefferson City June 30, 2012 0 71
Schedule Not Included in Report - Data 
from separate AWWA file

Jellico June 30, 2013 32.2 74

Johnson City June 30, 2013 8.5 77

Jonesborough June 30, 2013 12 75

Kenton June 30, 2012 30 41

Kingsport June 30, 2013 7.9 78

Kingston June 30, 2013 15.7 94

Knox-Chapman Utility District February 28, 2013 14.2 82

Knoxville June 30, 2013 10.4 88

Lafayette June 30, 2013 28.3 68

LaFollette June 30, 2013 11.9 82

LaGrange June 30, 2012 14.1 67

Laguardo Utility District December 31, 2012 7.8 80

Lake City June 30, 2012 23 79

Lakeview Utility District December 31, 2012 3.8 74

Page 5 of 11 171



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

LaVergne June 30, 2013 3.4 71

Lawrenceburg June 30, 2013 28.2 83

Lebanon June 30, 2012 12.8 71
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Lenoir City June 30, 2012 15.3 62

Leoma Utility District December 31, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Lexington June 30, 2012 2.1 83

Lincoln County Board of Public Utilities June 30, 2012 19.8 74
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Linden June 30, 2013 4.5 82

Livingston June 30, 2012 1.5 78
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Lobelville June 30, 2013 3 85

Lone Oak Utility District December 31, 2012 15.6 87

Loretto June 30, 2012 11.4 73
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Loudon June 30, 2012 15.0 78

Lynnville June 30, 2013 21.7 82

Madisonville June 30, 2012 0.4 69

Manchester June 30, 2012 20.5 92

Martel Utility District December 31, 2012 5.6 91
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Martin June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Maryville June 30, 2013 5.6 70

Maury County Board of Public Utilities June 30, 2013 7.3 73

Maynardville June 30, 2013 8.9 85

Maynardville June 30, 2012 12 85

McEwen June 30, 2012 18.6 73

McKenzie June 30, 2013 15.1 73

McMinnville June 30, 2013 36.6 82

Memphis June 30, 2013 3.8 78

Metro Moore County-Lynchburg Water and Sewer Department June 30, 2013 8.9 71

Middleton June 30, 2013 4.3 69

Mid-Hawkins County Utility District June 30, 2013 3.7 77

Milan June 30, 2013 7.2 77

Milcrofton Utility District September 30, 2012 10.0 94

Millington June 30, 2013 2.2 61

Page 6 of 11 172



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Monterey June 30, 2013 1.5 81

Mooresburg Utility District December 31, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Morristown June 30, 2013 16 83

Moscow June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Mount Pleasant June 30, 2012 9.8 86

Mountain City June 30, 2013 10.7 70

Mowbray Utility District May 31, 2013 26.5 80

Munford June 30, 2012 3.9 69

Murfreesboro June 30, 2013 14.7 73

New Canton Utility District December 31, 2013 16.3 83

New Johnsonville June 30, 2012 38.0 84

New Market Utility District December 31, 2012 13.8 82

Newport June 30, 2013 5.0 76

Niota June 30, 2011 15.9 77

Nolensville-College Grove Utility District September 30, 2012 9.8 83

Norris June 30, 2013 10.7 85

North Overton Utility District May 31, 2013 17.2 83

North Stewart Utility District May 31, 2013 11.2 71

North Utility District of Decatur and Benton Counties March 31, 2013 9.9 70

North Utility District of Rhea County September 30, 2012 6.6 67

Northeast Knox Utility District January 31, 2013 4.1 82

Northeast Lawrence Utility District December 31, 2012 14.4 76

Northwest Clay Utility District August 31, 2012 12.4 68

Northwest Dyersburg Utility District June 30, 2013 6.4 69

Northwest Henry Utility District June 30, 2013 8.3 72

Oak Ridge June 30, 2012 11.5 75

Obion June 30, 2012 10.6 74

Ocoee Utility District June 30, 2012 9.2 88

O'Connor Utility District December 31, 2012 16.6 80

Old Gainesboro Road Utility District December 31, 2012 9.2 90

Old Hickory Utility District June 30, 2013 Merged with Nashville
Oliver Springs June 30, 2012 9.7 69

Oneida June 30, 2013 15.2 68

Paris June 30, 2013 14.3 78

Parsons June 30, 2013 26.3 85

Page 7 of 11 173



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Perryville Utility District December 31, 2012 6.5 82

Persia Utility District December 31, 2012 4.8 97

Petersburg June 30, 2011 7.5 78

Pigeon Forge June 30, 2013 13.7 81

Pikeville June 30, 2012 15.6 68

Pikeville June 30, 2013 22.8 83

Piperton June 30, 2012 9.3 79
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Piperton June 30, 2013 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Plateau Utility District June 30, 2013 4.4 76

Pleasant View Utility District November 30, 2012 11.1 75

Portland June 30, 2012 1.5 78
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Portland June 30, 2013 41.8 80

Puryear June 30, 2013 10.1 70

Quebeck-Walling Utility District December 31, 2012 10.8 80

Ramer June 30, 2012 12.7 67

Reelfoot Utility District June 30, 2012 1.8 69

Riceville Utility District June 30, 2013 8.7 83

Ridgely June 30, 2013 12.9 67

River Road Utility District June 30, 2013 10.6 94

Roan Mountain Utility District March 31, 2013 40.9 63

Roane Central Utility District June 30, 2012 13.5 84

Rockwood June 30, 2013 33.6 82

Rockwood June 30, 2012 14.7 83

Rogersville June 30, 2012 2.4 80

Rossville June 30, 2012 7.1 75
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Russellville-Whitesburg Utility District June 30, 2013 13.6 89

Rutherford June 30, 2012 7.9 66

Rutledge June 30, 2013 519.7 78 Schedule Incomplete or inaccurate
Rutledge June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Saint Joseph June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Sale Creek Utility District May 31, 2013 6.2 71

Saltillo Utility District October 31, 2012 8.7 66

Samburg Utility District January 31, 2013 32.5 65

Page 8 of 11 174



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Sardis June 30, 2013 8.2 72

Savannah Valley Utility District April 30, 2013 18.5 84

Scotts Hill June 30, 2013 12 70

Second South Cheatham Utility District July 31, 2013 5.6 88

Selmer June 30, 2013 8.8 74

Sevierville June 30, 2012 5.0 84

Sevierville June 30, 2013 4.0 86

Sewanee Utility District December 31, 2012 11.2 77

Shelbyville June 30, 2013 24.9 79

Siam Utility District January 31, 2013 14.9 72

Signal Mountain June 30, 2013 11.4 80

Smith Utility District December 31, 2012 2.8 81

Sneedville Utility District March 31, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Somerville June 30, 2012 9.2 73

South Blount Utility District June 30, 2013 3.1 96

South Bristol-Weaver Pike Utility District November 30, 2012 17 82

South Cumberland Utility District December 31, 2012 9.6 79

South Elizabethton Utility District February 28, 2013 17.4 73

South Giles Utility District December 31, 2012 17.8 69

South Giles Utility District December 31, 2011 24.7 78

South Side Utility District December 31, 2012 0.9 69

Sparta June 30, 2012 2.4 77

Spring City June 30, 2012 9.5 73

Spring Creek Utility District of Hardeman County June 30, 2013 7.9 54

Spring Hill June 30, 2012 11.2 75

Springfield June 30, 2013 38 67

Stanton June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Striggersville Utility District December 31, 2012 Schedule Not Included in Report

Summertown Utility District June 30, 2012 8.6 68
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Summertown Utility District June 30, 2013 21.1 70

Surgoinsville Utility District April 30, 2013 12.1 66

Sweetwater June 30, 2013 7.8 83

Sylvia Tennessee City Pond Utility District December 31, 2012 15.9 86

Tarpley Shop Utility District June 30, 2013 23.1 83

Page 9 of 11 175



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Tellico Area Services System June 30, 2013 3.8 92

Tellico Plains June 30, 2013 8.3 60

Toone June 30, 2013 10.6 68

Toone June 30, 2012 10.6 68

Tracy City June 30, 2012 5.5 60
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Trenton June 30, 2013 15.6 76

Trimble June 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Tuckaleechee Utility District June 30, 2012 20.2 84

Tullahoma June 30, 2012 10.2 88
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Twenty Five Utility District December 31, 2012 16.1 81

Unicoi Water Utility District September 30, 2013 15.8 88

Unicoi Water Utility District September 30, 2012 Schedule Included in Report Old Format
Union City June 30, 2012 7.0 71

Vanleer June 30, 2013 32.5 83

Warren County Utility District June 30, 2013 4.8 86

Wartrace June 30, 2013 20.1 77

Watauga River Regional Water Authority June 30, 2012 3.7 83

Water Authority of Dickson County June 30, 2012 18.1 83

Watertown June 30, 2010 7.9 84
Schedule Included in Report Old Format - 
Data from separate AWWA file

Watts Bar Utility District September 30, 2012 3.3 67
Schedule Not Included in Report - Data 
from separate AWWA file

Watts Bar Utility District September 30, 2013 4.2 67

Waynesboro June 30, 2013 29.7 75

Waynesboro June 30, 2012 37.2 86

West Cumberland Utility District June 30, 2013 13 86

West Knox Utility District June 30, 2013 4.5 89

West Overton Utility District December 31, 2012 2.0 94

West Point Utility District December 31, 2012 20 76

West Warren-Viola Utility District December 31, 2012 3.0 83

West Wilson Utility District May 31, 2013 4.3 81

Westmoreland June 30, 2013 30.7 61

White House Utility District December 31, 2012 11.2 90

Winchester June 30, 2012 28.7 88

Page 10 of 11 176



Unaccounted For Water Loss Report
Audit Reports Received From January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013
TCA Filing Date: February 1, 2014

System Name Fiscal Year End
Non-Revenue Water 

as Percent by Cost of 
Operating System

Validity Score    
(Maximum is 100)

Unaccounted For Water Loss Schedule - 
Status                               

(blank indicates financial report 
schedule was in compliance)

Witt Utility District September 30, 2012 10.3 74

Woodbury June 30, 2013 41.3 82

Woodlawn Utility District December 31, 2012 8.8 85

Page 11 of 11 177



178



DISTRICT COUNTY LAST AUDIT
L
A

Bedford County UD Bedford June-13
Cagle-Freedonia UD Sequatchie  December-13
Cherokee Hills UD                       WL Polk December-12
Clay Gas UD Clay  August-13
Clearfork UD                                WL Claiborne December-12
East Sevier UD                             WL Sevier June-12
Haywood County UD Haywood June-13
Iron City UD Lawrence  December-12
Lone Oak UD Sequatchie  December-12
Minor Hill UD                               WL Giles December-11
Mooresburg UD                           WL Hawkins   December-12
Natural Gas UD of Hawkins Co Hawkins   March-13
Roan Mountain UD                      WL Carter March-13
Samburg UD Obion  January-13
Spring Creek UD                           WL Hardeman June-13
Surgoinsville UD Hawkins   April-13
Tansi Sewer UD Cumberland February-13
Unicoi Water UD Unicoi September-13

SYSTEMS UNDER THE UMRB JUNE 2014

179



WATER LOSS STATUS

District
original 

referral %
original audit 
referral date reviiew %

reporting 
date review %

reporting 
date review %

reporting 
date review %

reporting 
date

Cherokee Hills 100.000% 12/31/2010 100.00% 12/31/2011 not given 12/31/2012
Clearfork 73/10.8% 12/31/2010 59/16.6% 12/31/2012
East Sevier 75.000% 6/30/2010 72.00% 6/30/2011 58/52.5% 6/30/2012
Minor Hill 37.706% 12/31/2010 37.87% 12/31/2011
Mooresburg 68.623% 12/31/2009 56.23% 12/31/2010 61.686% 12/31/2011 59.83% 12/31/2012 not provide 12/31/2012
Roan Mountain 63/40.9% 3/31/2013
Samburg 51.632% 1/31/2012 65/32.5% 1/31/2013

180


	UMRB Sunshine 2014 June
	UMRB June 2014
	UMRB Minutes of April 3, 2014
	Surgoinsville UD case 06052014
	Surgoinsville UD
	History file

	Surgoinsville UD info from UD 06052014
	Unicoi Water UD case 08092012
	Unicoi Water UD
	History file

	Unicoi Water UD info from UD 06052014
	Cagle Fredonia UD case 06052014
	Cagle Fredonia UD
	History file

	Cagle Fredonia UD info from UD 06052014
	North UD of Rhea Co case 06052014
	North UD of Rhea Co
	History file

	North UD of Rhea info from UD 06052014
	Mooresburg WL info from UD 06052014
	Spring Creek WL info from UD 06052014
	Lone Oak HISTORY June 2014
	Lone Oak UD
	History file

	Lone Oak UD
	Projections

	Lone Oak UD Subpoena
	Summary of facts both parties
	UD rate study June 2014
	Info from Elkton June 2014
	Bent Creek Synopsis from Betsy 06052014
	Webb Creek UD
	History file

	Bent Creek findings of fact 06052014
	Webb Creek finding of fact 06052014
	Powell Clinch info for 06052014 packet
	Northeast Henry info from atty 06052014
	Northeast Henry info for 06052014 packet
	UMRB compliance report 06052014
	2014 Legislative water loss report
	Water Loss Package 2014 Draft2.pdf
	wwwfinbd QueryForm2013 - Trimmed10.pdf

	Jurisdiction 2014 June
	Sheet1

	Water loss status ONGOING both bds (2)
	UMRB

	ADPCA82.tmp
	Sheet1




